PARLAMENTUL REPUBLICII MOLDOVA



ПАРЛАМЕНТ РЕСПУБЛИКИ МОЛДОВА

THE PARLIAMENT of the REPUBLIC of MOLDOVA

LAW ON PUBLIC PROCUREMENTS no. 96-XVI of 13.04.2007

Official Gazette "Monitorul Oficial" no. 107-111/470 of 27.07.2007

* * *

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter I GENERAL

- Article 1. Principal terms
- **Article 2.** The scope of the law
- **Article 3.** Calculation of the estimated value of public procurement contracts and planning of such contracts
- **Article 4.** The exceptions
- **Article 5.** The special regime
- **Article 6.** The principles regulating the public procurement relationships
- **Article 7.** The legal framework

Chapter II STATE REGULATION OF THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENTS

- **Article 8.** The Agency for Provisioning of Tangible Resources, Public Procurements and Humanitarian Aid
- Article 9. The Agency's principal functions in the sphere of public procurements
- Article 10. The Agency's operation and administration
- Article 11. The Agency's budget

Chapter III PARTICIPANTS IN THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

Section 1 The Contracting Authorities

- Article 12. The status of the Contracting Authority
- Article 13. The functions of the Contracting Authorities in the sphere of public procurements
- Article 14. Performing of the Contracting Authority's functions

Section 2 The Supplier

- **Article 15.** The Suppliers' participation in the public procurement procedures
- **Article 16.** The Supplier's qualifications
- **Article 17.** The list of qualified suppliers
- **Article 18.** The list of prohibited suppliers

Chapter IV PUBLICITY AND TRANSPARENCY

- Article 19. The announcement of intent
- Article 20. General rules regarding the development and publication of a request for proposals
- Article 21. The announcement regarding the award of the public procurement contract
- Article 22. Notices to the bidders

Chapter V

THE PRINCIPAL REQUIREMENTS TO THE PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

- Article 23. The rules regarding notices
- Article 24. Communication forms
- Article 25. The requirement to confirm the documents
- Article 26. The timing for the submission and receipt of the applications for participation and bids
- Article 27. The rules for the description of the goods, works and services
- Article 28. The language of the standardized documentation
- Article 29. The rejection of all bids
- Article 30. Acts of corruption on the part of suppliers
- Article 31. The conditions regarding taxes, environmental issues and labor safety
- Article 32. The public procurements file

Chapter VI THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

Section 1

The types of the public procurement procedures

Article 33. Public procurement procedures

Section 2

The open tender

- Article 34. The initiation of an open tender
- Article 35. The invitation to participate in the open tender
- **Article 36.** The conditions regarding the offer of tender documents
- Article 37. The tender documents
- Article 38. The explanations regarding the tender documents and their modifications
- Article 39. The bid submission terms and conditions
- Article 40. The bid validity term, amendments and withdrawal
- **Article 41.** Alternative bids
- Article 42. The guarantee to secure the bid and the execution of the contract
- Article 43. Opening of the bids
- Article 44. Examination, evaluation and comparison of the bids
- **Article 45.** The bid most advantageous in the economic terms
- Article 46. A bid with an abnormally low price
- Article 47. Bid acceptance, awards and conclusion of the procurement contract

Section 3 The closed tender

- Article 48. The conditions for holding a closed tender
- **Article 49.** Pre selection (short-listing) procedure

Section 4

Other public procurement procedures

- Article 50. The framework agreement
- Article 51. The competitive dialogue

- Article 52. The negotiation procedure
- Article 53. Procurements from a single source
- Article 54. The request for price quotations
- **Article 55.** The dynamic procurements system
- Article 56. An electronic auction
- Article 57. Procurements in the case of the social housing construction schemes
- Article 58. Procurements via Universal Commodity Exchange
- Article 59. Cancellation of the results of procurement procedures

Chapter VII

THE SPECIFICS OF THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENTS FOR ADVISORY SERVICES

- Article 60. The attraction of bids for advisory services
- Article 61. The RFP for the advisory services
- Article 62. The evaluation criteria for the bids for advisory services
- **Article 63.** The procedure for the selection of the advisory service bids
- Article 64. Confidentiality

Chapter VIII THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENTS CONTRACT. PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE REPORTS

- Article 65. The principles of awarding a public procurements contract
- Article 66. Preferences in the awards of public procurement contracts
- Article 67. The public procurements contract
- Article 68. Subcontracts
- Article 69. The ban on the procurements fragmentation or increase
- Article 70. The report on the procurements procedure

Chapter IX SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES AND LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY

Section 1 Settlement of disputes

- Article 71. The right of appeal
- Article 72. Submission and examination of appeals
- **Article 73.** Claim examination procedures
- Article 74. Suspension of the procurements procedure

Section 2

Responsibility for the infringement of the public procurement law

Article 75. The forms of responsibility

Chapter X THE CONCLUDING AND TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

Article 76. Coming into effect. Terminations. The Government's obligations

The Parliament hereby adopts this organic law.

CHAPTER I: GENERAL

Article 1. Principal Terms

For the purposes of this law, the following principal terms shall be used in the following meaning:

Public procurements: Acquisition of goods, works performed or services provided for the needs of one or more Contracting Authorities;

The Agency for the Provisioning of Tangible Resources, Public Procurements and Humanitarian Aid: The central administrative authority with the functions of government regulation, supervision, control and inter-industry coordination in the sphere of public procurements;

The contracting authority: Public administration authorities, legal entities under public law as well as associations of such authorities or entities;

Public funds: The funds from the state budge, local budgets of administrative territorial units, the public social insurance budget, specialized foundations, specialized provisions of public institutions, the Statutory Medical Insurance Fund, external loans accounted for as direct or guaranteed state debt;

Public procurement contract: A remunerative contract concluded in writing between one or several suppliers and one or more Contracting Authorities and having as its subject matter the acquisition of goods, works performed or services provided within the meaning of this law:

Standardized documentation: The documents which comprise all information regarding the subject matter of the public procurements contract and the procedures for its awards, including the terms of reference or description, as the case may be;

Bid guarantee: An amount of money or a guarantee to provide such amount, which is presented by the Bidder to the Contracting Authority together with the bid and which secures the validity of such bid;

Contract execution guarantee: The guarantee securing the execution of the contractual obligations provided for in the public procurements contract concluded between the Contracting Authority or authorities and the bidder awarded the contract;

The procurements workgroup: The group of professionals within the Contracting Authority, which implements the public procurement procedures;

Open Tender: The public procedure, under which any interested supplier may submit a bid;

Closed Tender: The public procedure, under which any interested supplier may apply for the participation and under which only the suppliers short-listed (pre-selected) by the Contracting Authority may submit their bids;

Electronic means: The means which uses electronic data procession equipment, including digital compression and storage of data, which can be diffused, transmitted and received via cable, radio, optical devices or other electromagnetic devices;

The bid most advantageous in economic terms: The bid selected as the winning bid according to the criteria laid down in this law and in the procedure of awarding a public procurements contract;

A bidder: The supplier who has submitted a bid according to the procedure of awarding a public procurements contract;

A supplier: Supplier of goods, works and/or services, who can be an individual or an entity, or a public law entity, or an association of such persons and/or entities which supply goods, works and/or services at the market.

Article 2. The scope of the law

- (1) This law shall apply to public procurement contracts, which are not covered in Article 4 and which have an estimated value without value-added tax (VAT) no less than the threshold levels below:
 - a) for public procurement contracts to procure goods: MDL 20,000;
 - b) for public procurement contracts to procure works and services: MDL 25,000.
- (2) This law shall apply also to public procurement contracts directly subsidized by the Contracting Authority by more than 50%, where they are not covered by the exceptions specified in Article 4.
- (3) This law shall provide also for the specific details regarding the public procurement contracts, which are not covered in Article 4 and which have an estimated value without value-added tax (VAT) no less than the threshold levels below:
 - a) for public procurement contracts to procure goods and services: MDL 2,500,000;
 - b) for public procurement contracts to procure works:

MDL 99,000,000.

(4) The public procurement contracts which have an estimated value without VAT less than the threshold levels specified in Paragraph (1) shall be dealt with in conformity with the Government-approved Regulation on low value public procurements.

Article 3. Calculation of the estimated value of public procurement contracts and planning of such contracts

- (1) The estimated value of a public procurement contract shall be calculated based on the total amount payable, without VAT, as assessed by the Contracting Authority. The structure of the total amount payable shall include all types of remuneration, including eventual bonuses, fees, commissions, obtained income and/or premiums or payments to the benefit of the bidders, with account at all times of possible options and eventual contract extensions.
- (2) The exact methods for calculation of the estimated value of public procurement contracts and their planning shall be laid down in a separate regulation approved by the Government.

Article 4. The exceptions

The provisions of this law shall not apply to:

- a) R&D service contracts, under which the Contracting Authority is the sole beneficiary, where the deliverables are used for in-house purposes and to exercise its functions, provided the supplied services are paid solely by the Contracting Authority and the prices for the provided services do not exceed or are within the range of the market prices for similar services;
- b) public procurement contracts which have arbitration and/or reconciliation services as their subject matter;
- c) public procurement contracts in respect of the issue, purchase, sale or transfer of titles or other financial instruments, and in particular in respect of the operations to accumulate the Contracting Authorities' funds or capital;
 - d) the services provided by the National Bank of Moldova;
- e) public procurement contracts declared secret under the applicable legislation, where their execution necessitates special security measures required by the law;
 - f) public procurement contracts which have employment contracts as subject matter;
 - g) concession contracts for public services and works;
- h) public procurement contracts awarded by a Contracting Authority to any other Contracting Authority or an association of Contracting Authorities based on the exclusive rights they are holding according to the law;
- i) public procurement contracts which have as their subject matter the acquisition of goods for subsequent resale;
- j) contracts for the procurement of goods by the Contracting Authority from the state provisions of tangible resources and emergency provisions;
- k)) contracts for the procurement of goods, works and services connected with the manufacture of or trade in armaments, ammunition and armament systems;
- l) public procurement contracts regulated by different norms and procedures and awarded according to:

the international agreements concluded by Moldova and one or more third countries in respect of the goods or services required for joint implementation or operation of a certain venture by the signatory states, or regarding the services necessary for the joint implementation or operation of a certain project by the signatory states;

the international agreements regarding the deployment of troops and connected with the engagements of Moldova or a third country;

the specific procedures of an international organization.

Article 5. The special regime

- (1) The Contracting Authorities operating in the sphere of the national defense, public order and national security shall be obliged to apply the provisions of this law, excepting the situations covered in Article 4.
- (2) The right to participate in the procedures to award public procurement contracts may be reserved by the Government to the extent not to exceed 20% of the total volume of the procurements for the Association of the Blind; the Association of the Handicapped; the Association of the Deaf; the production facility of the National Psychiatric Hospital;

penitentiary system institutions and other disadvantaged parties; alternatively such parties may enjoy preferential terms and conditions for the participation in such procedures within the framework of employment programs, as provided for in the legislation.

Article 6. The principles regulating the public procurement relationships

The relations arising in connection with the public procurements shall be regulated on the basis of the following principles:

- a) the efficient use of public funds and minimization of the risks for the Contracting Authorities;
 - b) transparency of the public procurements;
- c) ensuring of the competition and prevention of unfair competition in the sphere of public procurements;
- d) environment protection and promotion of the sustainable development principles via public procurements;
- e) maintenance of the public order, morale and security; protection of human health and human life, flora and fauna;
 - f) liberalization and expansion of international trade;
 - g) free circulation of goods, liberty to establish and provide services;
 - h) equal treatment, impartiality and non-discrimination for all bidders and suppliers;
- i) support for the suppliers resident in Moldova to the extent which does not come in conflict with the international laws to which Moldova is a party;
 - j) responsibility within the framework of the public procurement procedures.

Article 7. The legal framework

- (1) The relations arising in connection with the public procurement are regulated by this law and other laws and Government resolutions adopted in conformity with this law.
- (2) Should an international agreement or treaty to which Moldova is a party establish the norms different from those provided for in this law, the provisions of the international treaty shall prevail.

CHAPTER II

STATE REGULATION OF THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENTS

Article 8. The Agency for Provisioning of Tangible Resources, Public Procurements and Humanitarian Aid

(1) The Agency for Provisioning of Tangible Resources, Public Procurements and Humanitarian Aid, further "the Agency", is a public authority with the legal status of an independent legal entity established as a central administrative authority with the status of a legal entity, which is subordinated to the Government and established with the objective to exercise state regulation, supervision, control and inter-sector coordination in the sphere of public procurements. The Agency is an independent functional unit.

(2) The Agency shall have its own balance sheet, bank account(s), the stamp bearing the State Ensign of Moldova and the name of the Agency in the state language.

Article 9. The Agency's principal functions in the sphere of public procurements

- (1) The Agency shall perform the following principal functions:
 - a) develop and submit to the Government for approval the draft regulations necessary to exercise this law; develop suggestions regarding the introduction of modifications and amendments to the public procurements legislation;
 - b) coordinate, monitor, assess and control compliance of the Contracting Authorities with the public procurement procedures and procedures for the awarding of public procurement contracts;
 - c) produce, update and maintain the list of qualified supplies and supplier disqualification lists;
 - d) develop and implement standardized documentation for the public procurement procedures;
 - e) examine and register the tender documentation submitted by the Contracting Authorities;
 - f) examine reports on the public procurement procedures;
 - g) examine and register public procurement contracts concluded as result of implementing the procurement procedures, excepting the contracts concluded as result of implementing the request for price quotations procedure;
 - h) request re-examination or cancellation, as the case may be, of the results of public procurement procedures;
 - i) maintain the automated public procurements register;
 - j) examine and settle disputes between the parties participating in the public procurement procedures;
 - k) provide methodology assistance and advice regarding the public procurements to the Contracting Authorities, initiate and support training efforts for the Contracting Authority staff involved in the preparation and implementation of the public procurement procedures and awarding of the public procurement contracts;
 - issue the public procurements bulletin; develop and place in the Internet the web page "Moldova's Public Procurements", which is the formal venue for publication of invitations to tender, requests for proposals and information on the public procurements and awards of public procurement contracts;
 - m) submit to the Government quarterly and annual reports and statistical analysis on public procurements;
 - n) request and obtain from the relevant authorities the information on the suppliers participating in the public procurement procedures as well as any other information required by the Agency to perform its functions;
 - o) collaborate with international agencies and similar foreign entities operating in the sphere of public procurements;

- p) coordinate the use of foreign technical assistance in the sphere of public procurement;
- q) perform other functions provided for in this law and other applicable laws and regulations.
- (2) The Agency shall perform its functions at the level of developing regions via its territorial offices.

Article 10. The Agency's operation and administration

The Agency's operation and administration shall follow the Regulations approved by the Government.

Article 11. The Agency's budget

- (1) The Agency's budget shall be comprised of:
- a) own income resulting from activities which are not contrary to this law;
- b) allocations from the state budget;
- c) other additional lawful sources.
- (2) The Agency's budget shall be developed, examined, approved and reported in compliance with the law.

CHAPTER III

PARTICIPANTS IN THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

Section 1. The Contracting Authorities

Article 12. The status of the Contracting Authority

- (1) The Contracting Authority may be any public authority within the meaning of the term defined in the legislation of Moldova, including legal entities under the public law, associations of such authorities or persons.
 - (2) A legal entity under the public law shall mean any entity:
- a) established exclusively to satisfy public needs, without any profit targets (industrial or commercial);
 - b) with a separate legal identity;
- c) whose operations are secured to a major extent with public funds, or whose management is subject to the controls exercised by a public authority or another legal entity under the public law, or whose Administrative, Management or Supervision Board has more than 50% of the members appointed by the above entities.
- (3) Furthermore, the Contracting Authority may be an association of several Contracting Authorities, whose members appoint a legal entity from their midst by a civil law act to represent them as a single buyer in the relationships with any Supplier, contractor to perform works or service provider.

- (4) Other legal entities with an obligation to perform public procurements may be qualified as the Contracting Authorities by a Government decision according to this law, where they operate at the markets in which the competition is excluded on the force of a regulation or an administrative ruling or due to the existence of a monopoly.
- (5) Any other entity, which does not satisfy the aggregate of the requirements specified in Paragraph (2) hereof, may be qualified upon request or decision of a competent governance body as a Contracting Authority subject to the performance of the procurements in strict compliance with this law.
- (6) A Contracting Authority may be a public authority appointed by the Government to organize and perform in a centralized way the public procurement procedures with the objective to satisfy certain needs in the respective goods, works or services for some other Contracting Authorities.

Article 13. The functions of the Contracting Authorities in the sphere of public procurements

- (1) The Contracting authorities shall perform the following actions in the sphere of public procurement:
- a) establish work groups in charge of implementing the public procurements within the Contracting Authority;
 - b) develop annual and quarterly public procurement plans;
- c) issue requests for proposals / invitations to tender within the framework of the public procurement procedures;
- d) develop tender documentation packages and other documents applicable within the framework of the procurement procedures;
 - e) initiate and perform the public procurement procedures;
 - f) ensure the extensive participation of Suppliers in the public procurement procedures;
- g) examine, assess and compare the bids submitted by Suppliers within the framework of the public procurement procedures;
 - h) conclude public procurement contracts with Suppliers;
- i) produce reports on the results of the public procurement procedures and submit them to the Agency;
- j) execute and manage public procurement contracts according to their terms and conditions;
- k) keep records of all documents produced and applied within the framework of the public procurement procedures.
 - (2) The Contracting Authority shall:
 - a) ensure the efficiency of the public procurements;
- b) ensure the objectivity and impartiality within the framework of the public procurement procedures;
 - c) ensure the transparency and publicity of the public procurement procedures;

d) submit upon the Agency's request any information regarding the conclusion and execution of the public procurement contracts.

Article 14. Performing of the Contracting Authority's functions

- (1) The Contracting Authority shall exercise its functions through the procurements work group, established for that purpose of the Contracting Authority's officers and experts with the relevant professional experience and expertise in the sphere of public procurements, which are selected from among the listed staff. Depending on the subject of the procurements, the Contracting Authority may establish one or more procurements work groups.
- (2) The Contracting Authority may invite, if necessary, professionals and experts in the sphere of particular procurements to act as advisors in the procurements work group. In special cases provided for in the law, such professionals and experts may be granted a voting right in the work group.
- (3) A member of the work group must sign (at his/her personal responsibility) a declaration in writing regarding the confidentiality and impartiality, in which he/she undertakes to observe unconditionally the provisions of this law and presents furthermore that he/she:
 - a) is not a spouse, relative or in-law (to the third degree inclusive) of any of the bidders;
 - b) has not been within the last 3 years a party to an employment contract or a cooperation contract concluded with any of the bidders, as shown in the labor record book, or has not been a member of the bidder's administrative board or any other of the bidder's governance or management bodies;
 - c) does not hold a stake or shares in the authorized and subscribed capital of any of the bidders.
- (4) Should a work group member present prior to the bid opening meeting to fall into one or several of the categories listed in Paragraph (3), he/she must request promptly his/her immediate removal from the work group and replacement with another person.
- (5) The Agency may cancel the procurement process in the case of non-compliance with the provisions of the Paragraphs (3) and (4) above.
- (6) The procurements work group shall be guided in its activities by this law and the Regulations approved by the Government.

Section 2. The Supplier

Article 15. The Suppliers' participation in the public procurement procedures

- (1) Any Supplier with the status of a resident or non-resident business company (including individuals as well as legal entities) may participate according to this law in the procedures of awarding the public procurement contract, excepting the cases where the Contracting Authority, acting in conformity with the legislation, decides to procure domestic goods and services. The report on the procurement procedure shall indicate the reasons for such decision.
- (2) Non-resident suppliers shall enjoy the rights and remedies similar to those granted to resident suppliers under this law solely in the case of the public procurements provided for

in Article 2 Paragraph (3) subject to compliance with the requirements of Paragraph (3) hereof.

- (3) A foreign supplier shall enjoy in Moldova the rights in respect of the participation in the procedures of awarding public procurement contracts similar to the rights enjoyed by the Moldovan suppliers in the foreign supplier's home country.
- (4) Suppliers may form associations for the purposes of submitting their bids and/or act as joint bidders. An association (a group of suppliers) might be obliged to obtain a certain legal status where such transformation is necessary for the proper execution of the contract.
- (5) The participation terms and conditions set for the suppliers (which may include financial guarantees, technical qualifications and the information necessary to assess the supplier's financial, commercial and technical capacity and to check his qualifications) may not be less favorable for non-resident suppliers that those required from resident suppliers or otherwise discriminatory for the non-resident supplier.

Article 16. The supplier's qualifications

- (1) To confirm the supplier's qualifications for the purposes of the public procurement procedures, the supplier must submit the documents issued by the competent authorities indicated by the Contracting Authority for the purposes of the public procurement procedures and evidencing:
- a) the Supplier's managerial competencies, experience, good repute, availability of the skilled staff and equipment, financial capacity and other capacities necessary for adequate execution of the public procurements contract throughout the lifetime of such contract;
 - b) authority to conclude the public procurements contract;
- c) good standing, implying the availability of certificates confirming that the supplier is not in the process of liquidation or bankruptcy, its assets are not under sequestration and its business operations are not suspended;
- d) payment of taxes and other statutory charges in compliance with the laws of the supplier's home country;
- e) non-application during the last 3 years of any disciplinary, administrative or penal sanctions to the supplier's managers in connection with their professional activities or submission of erroneous data for the purposes of concluding a public procurements contract;
 - f) the list of founders/shareholders and affiliates (affiliated persons).
- (2) The Contracting Authority shall take into account the Supplier's rights connected with the protection of its intellectual property and commercial secrets.
- (3) The Contracting Authority shall assess the Supplier's qualifications, using the criteria and procedures described in the request for proposals/invitation to tender.
- (4) The Contracting Authority may disqualify the bidder at any stage of the procurement process in case it is found that the information submitted by the supplier for the qualification purposes is untrue or incomplete, or in other cases provided for in this law and other applicable laws and regulations.
- (5) The Bidder may be disqualified if he does not present the supplementary information requested by the Contracting Authority within the requested term.

- (6) The bidder may not be disqualified due to the fact that the qualification information presented by him is inaccurate or incomplete to an immaterial degree.
- (7) The Contracting Authority may request the bidders to present the documentary evidence, if necessary, and should it have any doubts regarding the bidder's and supplier's personal situation, it may request cooperation and the necessary information from the competent authorities, including foreign ones.
- (8) The competent authorities and the authorities protecting and enforcing the law and order should present upon request of the Contracting Authority and free of charge within 10 calendar days the systematized information or any other information regarding the supplier's legal status, involvement/non-involvement in criminal associations or groups as well as other information about the respective bidder and supplier, specified in this law. In the case of non-resident suppliers such information may be sought from the competent foreign authorities according to the accepted international practices.

Article 17. The list of qualified suppliers

- (1) The list of qualified suppliers is a formal list maintained to ensure the suppliers' accessibility during the public procurement procedures.
- (2) The inclusion in the List of qualified suppliers may not be an obligatory requirement; it is performed upon the supplier's request with the issuance of the confirming certificate upon such inclusion.
- (3) The List of qualified suppliers shall be developed, maintained and updated by the Agency according to the Regulations approved by the Government.

Article 18. The list of prohibited suppliers

- (1) The list of prohibited suppliers is a formal list developed and maintained by the Agency for the purpose to restrict for 3 years the participation of prohibited suppliers in the public procurement procedures covered by this law.
- (2) The list of prohibited suppliers shall be developed, maintained and updated by the Agency according to the Regulations approved by the Government.

CHAPTER IV

PUBLICITY AND TRANSPARENCY

Article 19. The announcement of intent

- (1) The Contracting Authority must publish an announcement of intent in the Public Procurements Bulletin regarding the scheduled public procurements. In the case of the public procurements covered by Article 2 Paragraph (3), the announcement of intent shall be published also in "The Official Journal of the European Community".
- (2) The announcement of intent shall be published separately for the goods, works and services within 30 days upon approval of the respective Contracting Authority's budget.
- (3) The announcement of intent shall cover all public procurement contracts scheduled to be awarded prior to the end of the budgetary year. It shall not be necessary to publish an

announcement of intent in respect of the procurement contracts for goods and services with the estimated value of up to MDL 200,000 and for works - up to MDL 1,000,000.

(4) The publication of the announcement of intent shall not create an obligation for the Contracting Authority to perform the respective public procurements.

Article 20. General rules regarding the development and publication of a request for proposals

- (1) The Contracting Authority must publish a request for proposals (further "RFP") in the Public Procurement Bulletin and on the Agency's web page in all cases provided for by this law in accordance with the applied procurement procedures. In the case of the public procurements covered by Article 2 Paragraph (3), the RFP shall be published also in "The Official Journal of the European Community".
- (2) The RFP shall be published in the state language and, if necessary, in one of the internationally used languages.
- (3) Standardized formats approved for the purpose shall be used to develop and adjust the RFP, making it possible to publicize the public procurements.
- (4) To ensure the maximum transparency, the Contracting Authority may publish the RFP in other national or international mass media; however, it may be done solely upon publication of the respective RFP in the Public Procurements Bulletin and on the Agency's web page. The RFP published in the other local, national or international mass media should make reference to the issue number and date of the Public Procurements Bulletin where the RFP has been first published, and it may not contain any information additional to that published in the Public Procurements Bulletin.
- (5) The RFP shall be published well in advance to provide a realistic possibility for any interested supplier to participate without discrimination in the procedures of awarding the public procurements contract.
- (6) Should it become necessary to adjust or publish anew the RFP after its initial publication, but prior to the deadline specified for the opening or submission of the bids, the adjusted RFP must be published in the same media and indicate the same value as the initial RFP.

Article 21. The announcement regarding the award of the public procurement contract

- (1) The Contracting Authority must publish the announcement regarding the award of the public procurements contract in the Public Procurements Bulletin and on the Agency's web page within 30 calendar days after the conclusion of such contract.
- (2) The announcement regarding the award of the public procurements contract shall contain at least the following information:
- a) the nature and quantity of the goods, works or services forming the subject matter of the awarded contract;
 - b) the name and address of the Contracting Authority which has awarded the contract;
 - c) the day of awarding the contract;
 - d) the name and other information identifying the winning supplier;

- e) the value of the awarded contract;
- f) the legal grounds for the use of the respective contract award procedure;
- g) the used procedure.

Article 22. Notices to the bidders

- (1) Upon request of the bidders, the Contracting Authority must provide:
- a) explanations regarding the applied procurement procedures;
- b) to the rejected bidders the reasons for choosing a different bid as well as the relative characteristics and advantages and full name of the winning bidder.
- (2) The Contracting Authority shall notify the bidders participating in the procurement procedures, upon their request, about all contract award decisions.
- (3) Such information on the awarded contract shall not be provided, the disclosure of which is contrary to the law or public interest.
- (4) The rejected bidder may request the information, which evidences the impartiality of the procurement process. For that purpose the Contracting Authority shall provide free of charge the information regarding the relative characteristics and advantages of the winning bidder and the contract price, excepting the cases where the disclosure of such information might prejudice the competition at future tenders.

CHAPTER V

THE PRINCIPAL REQUIREMENTS TO THE PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

Article 23. The rules regarding notices

- (1) The notices, amendments to the information and their storage shall ensure the integrity of the data and the confidentiality of bids and applications for participation as well as the possibility of scrutiny and analysis in substance of the bids and applications for participation by the Contracting Authority solely after the deadline specified for their submission.
- (2) The tools used for electronic communications and their technical characteristics must be continuously available to the public and compatible with the generally used information and communication technologies.
- (3) The use of devices for electronic transmission and reception of the bids as well as the devices for electronic reception of the applications for participation should satisfy the following requirements:
- a) the information regarding the specifications necessary for the submission of bids and applications for participation via electronic channels, including their coding/encoding, must be available to the interested parties;
 - b) the bids submitted electronically must be confirmed with a digital signature.

Article 24. Communication forms

- (1) All notices may be given and all exchange of information may take place, upon the Contracting Authority's choice, by mail, by fax, electronically, by phone or using a combination thereof.
- (2) The chosen communication means should be generally accessible and they must not limit the suppliers' access to the procedure of awarding the public procurements contract.

Article 25. The requirement to confirm the documents

The Contracting Authority may request the bidder to provide the evidence confirming the documents presented by him – according to the conditions laid down for the relevant document category.

Article 26. The timing for the submission and receipt of the applications for participation and bids

- (1) The deadline for the submission and receipt of the applications for participation and bids must be established sufficiently well in advance to enable the domestic as well as foreign suppliers to prepare and submit their bids prior to the completion of the tender procedures.
- (2) Establishing the deadline, the Contracting Authority must take into consideration the complexity of the scheduled procurements, the anticipated subcontracted areas and the time normally required to receive the bids sent by the domestic and international mail.
- (3) The Contracting Authority shall be responsible for the establishment of deadlines for the submission and receipt of applications for participation and bids.
- (4) In the case of an open or closed tenders, the term for the submission and receipt of the applications for participation and bids may be no less than 15 calendar days after the day on which the RFP is published, and in the case of the public procurements covered by Article 2 Paragraph (3) no less than 40 calendar days. In the case of repeated contracts and in emergency situations (which must be substantiated by the Contracting Authority) the term for the submission of bids may be reduced, however, it may not be less than 10 calendar days.
- (5) In the case of the procedures implying the request to submit price quotations, the time for the submission and receipt of the bids may be no less than 3 calendar days for the goods and 10 calendar days for the works and services after the RFP is circulated. In the case of auxiliary procurements, repeated contracts and in the emergency situations (which must be substantiated by the Contracting Authority) the term for the submission of bids may be reduced, however, it may be no less than 2 calendar days for the goods and 5 calendar days for the works and services.

Article 27. The rules for the description of the goods, works and services

- (1) The characteristics of the goods, works and services requested by the Contracting Authority shall be an exact and complete description of the subject matter for the procurements, making it possible to comply with all requirements and criteria established by the Contracting Authority.
- (2) The characteristics of the subject matter for the procurements must correspond to the Contracting Authority's requirements regarding the quality, efficiency, testing, security,

dimensions, symbols, terminology, packaging, transportation, marking, labeling, production processes and techniques as well as conformity assessment procedures, as specified in the tender documents.

- (3) Upon adjustments to the technical characteristics, projects, technical designs, drawings and descriptions requested by the Contracting Authority:
- a) physical description of the requested goods, works and services shall be provided on the basis of the objective and relevant technical specifications and quality characteristics;
- b) the characteristics shall be provided in terms of the operational performance of the goods and the efficiency of works and services in cases where physical description is impossible or where the efficiency or performance is of primary significance;
- c) the standardized characteristics, requirements, symbols and terms or the international and national standards accepted internationally and approved by the Standardization and Metrology Service shall be used for the purposes of describing the requested goods, works and services.
- (4) The technical characteristics shall make no reference to a certain trade mark, brand or company, patent, drawing or type of the goods, works and services; no specific place of origin, manufacturer or supplier shall be indicated. Should it be impossible to detail the procurement requirements with sufficient exactness without such references, the wording of the characteristics shall include the words "or their equivalent".
- (5) Technical specifications shall be based on the international or national standards, national technical regulations or construction codes, if applicable.

Article 28. The language of the standardized documentation

- (1) The short-listing or tender documents and other public procurement documents shall be produced and published in the state language.
- (2) The documents covered by Paragraph (1) may be produced furthermore in one of the internationally used languages where:
- a) the nature of the requested goods, works and services implies the involvement of foreign suppliers, resources or technologies, provision of foreign professional services or involvement of foreign competitors;
- b) the estimated price of the requested goods, works and service is in excess of the threshold levels specified in Article 2 Paragraph (3).
- (3) The bids shall be submitted in the state language. Any supplier may make reference to the tender documents and formulate requests in the language of the bid.

Article 29. The rejection of all bids

- (1) The Contracting Authority may reject all bids at any time prior to their receipt. Such action may be justified by the absence of effective competition, the impossibility of funding or non-compliance of the bids with the requirements specified in the tender documents.
- (2) The notice regarding the rejection of all bids shall be given to all bidders within no more than 3 calendar days. The Contracting Authority shall communicate the grounds for the rejection upon inquiry of any bidder.

Article 30. Acts of corruption on the part of suppliers

- (1) The Contracting Authority shall reject the bid in the case the supplier submitting it offers or agrees to offer, directly or indirectly, a favor in any form or to extend an employment offer, or to provide any other service to any of the Contracting Authority's former or current officers or employees as remuneration for certain actions, decisions or use of certain procurement procedures to his advantage.
- (2) The rejection of the bid and the grounds for the rejection shall be indicated in the report on the procurement procedure and communicated promptly to the relevant suppliers.
- (3) The Agency shall report promptly each case of corruption or attempted corruption acts on the part of the supplier or a representative of the Contracting Authority to the competent authorities.
- (4) The public procurement contracts awarded as result of the corruptive acts confirmed by the definitive court decision shall be considered null and void.

Article 31. The conditions regarding taxes, environmental issues and labor safety

- (1) The Contracting Authority may indicate in the terms of reference (TOR) an authority or authorities where the bidders can obtain pertinent information regarding the obligations connected with taxes, environment protection, labor safety and labor legislation in Moldova, which would be applied to the works performed on site or the services provided during the execution of the contract.
- (2) The Contracting Authority which provides the information as per Paragraph (1) shall request the bidders to mention that they took into account during the preparation of the bid the obligations ensuing from the applicable labor safety norms and labor regulations effective in the location of the works or services.

Article 32. The public procurements file

- (1) The Contracting Authority must produce the public procurements file and ensure its safekeeping for 5 years after the initiation of the procurement procedure.
- (2) The documents which should be included in the public procurements file as well as those which should be transmitted to the Agency are specified in the Regulations approved by the Government.

CHAPTER VI

THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

Section 1. The types of the public procurement procedures

Article 33. The public procurement procedures

- (1) The award of the public procurements contract may be performed using the following procedures:
 - a) open (public) tender;

- b) closed tender;
- c) framework contract;
- d) competitive dialogue;
- e) negotiations;
- f) procurement from a single source;
- g) request for price quotations;
- h) dynamic procurement system;
- i) electronic auction/tender;
- j) procurements for the social housing construction schemes;
- k) procurements through the Universal Commodity Exchange.
- (2) The open tender shall be the basic procedure for the awards of public procurement contracts. Other procurement procedures may be used solely on conditions expressly provided for in this law.

Section 2. The open tender

Article 34. The initiation of an open tender

- (1) The open tender procedure involves the reception of bids from all suppliers who are willing to participate in the tender.
- (2) The Contracting Authority shall publish according to the provisions of Article 26 a prior invitation to participate in the open tender in order to notify the potential participants and to enable them to prepare their bids.

Article 35. The invitation to participate in the open tender

The invitation to participate in the open tender shall indicate:

- a) the Contracting Authority's name and address;
- b) the goods, their quantities and the address for their delivery; the works and their location; the services and the location for their provision;
- c) the term for the supply of the goods or completion of the works, the time schedule for the provision of the services;
 - d) the suppliers' qualification criteria and assessment procedures;
- e) the provision which cannot be amended at a later stage, stating that: either the suppliers may participate in the procurement procedure irrespective of their country of residence, or the circle of participants is limited according to Article 15 Paragraph (1);
 - f) the procedure and address for obtaining the tender documents;
 - g) the fee payable for the tender documents, if applicable;
 - h) the currency and procedures to pay the fee for the tender documents;
 - i) the language(s) of the tender documents;
 - j) the address and deadline for the submission of bids.

Article 36. The conditions regarding the offer of tender documents

The Contracting Authority shall offer the tender documents to the suppliers on the terms and conditions specified in the invitation to participate in the tender (RFP). The fee which the Contracting Authority might choose to request for the tender documents may include only the costs of their multiplication and delivery to the suppliers. The tender documents shall be offered free of charge to the Association of the Blind, the Association of the Handicapped, the Association of the Deaf, the production facility of the National Psychiatric Hospital, the penitentiary system institutions and other disadvantaged parties.

Article 37. The tender documents

The structure and contents of the tender documents shall be established in the standardized documents approved by the Government.

Article 38. The explanations regarding the tender documents and their modifications

- (1) Any supplier may request explanations regarding the tender documents from the Contracting Authority. The Contracting Authority shall provide an answer to any such request/inquiry, which is received prior to the deadline for the submission of the bids, within the term which gives the supplier the possibility to submit his bid on time. Without indicating the source of the inquiry, the Contracting Authority shall provide the respective explanations to all suppliers who have obtained the tender documents.
- (2) The Contracting Authority may modify the tender documents prior to the deadline for the submission of the bids at its sole discretion or as the reaction to the inquiry to provide explanations received from a supplier. The information on any such modifications shall be communicated without delay to all suppliers who have been offered the tender documents by the Contracting Authority, thus enabling them to take it into account during the preparation of the bids, and the Agency.
- (3) In the case a meeting of the suppliers is convened, the Contracting Authority shall produce the meeting minutes, including the inquiries and requests expressed at the meeting to provide explanations in connection with the tender documents and the answers to such requests, without indication of the source. The Contracting Authority shall distribute the meeting minutes without delay to all suppliers who have obtained the tender documents, thus enabling them to take the document into account during the preparation of the bids, and notify the Agency accordingly. The meeting minutes shall form an integral part of the tender documents and due reference shall be made to their respective provisions where the Contracting Authority intends to introduce modifications or amendments.

Article 39. The bid submission terms and conditions

- (1) The Contracting Authority shall specify the venue and the deadline for the submission of bids, indicating the exact day and time. This deadline shall be established in conformity with Article 26.
- (2) Where the Contracting Authority provides explanations or introduces amendments to the tender documents or where it convenes a meeting of the suppliers, the deadline for the

submission of the bids may be postponed, if necessary, to give the suppliers sufficient time to take into account the relevant explanation, amendment or provisions of the meeting minutes.

- (3) The Contracting Authority may extend the period for the preparation of the bids at its sole discretion prior to the deadline for the submission of the bids.
- (4) The Contracting Authority shall give the notice regarding the extension of the preparation period without delay to all suppliers who have obtained the tender documents and the Agency.
- (5) The bids shall be submitted in writing, stamped, in a sealed envelope. The Contracting Authority must issue the supplier a receipt indicating the day and time of receiving the respective bid.
- (6) The bids received by the Contracting Authority after the deadline for the submission of the bids shall be returned to the respective suppliers unopened.

Article 40. The bid validity term, amendments and withdrawal

- (1) The bid shall be valid for the term specified in the tender documents.
- (2) Prior to the expiry of the bid the Contracting Authority may request the bidder to extend its validity term. The Bidder may:
- a) refuse to comply with the request, retaining the right to withdraw the guarantee deposited for his bid;
- b) accept the request, either extending the validity term of the guarantee deposited to secure the bid or providing a new bid guarantee to cover the extended bid validity term. The bidder which does not extend the validity term of the guarantee deposited to secure the bid or provide a new bid guarantee shall be deemed to reject the request to extend the bid validity term.
- (3) Unless the tender documents provide otherwise, the bidder may amend or withdraw the bid prior to the deadline for the submission of bids, without losing the right to withdraw the guarantee deposited for his bid. Such amendment or a notice regarding the withdrawal of the bid shall be valid provided it is received by the Contracting Authority prior to the deadline for the submission of bids.

Article 41. Alternative bids

- (1) The bidder may submit additionally other bids termed as "alternative bids" solely provided the bid assessment criterion is "the most advantageous bid in technical and economic terms". Only alternative bids may deviate to a certain extent from the requirements specified in the documentation regarding the development and submission of bids.
- (2) The Contracting Authority must specify the minimum obligatory requirements in the tender documents, with which the alternative bids should comply in order to be considered. Therefore where the Contracting Authority does not intend to permit the submission of alternative bids, it must state that ban expressly in the RFP/invitation to tender.
 - (3) The Contracting Authority may not reject an alternative bid solely on grounds that:
- a) it is prepared using technical specifications differing from those given in the TOR provided the bidder is able to show that the proposed solution ensures the adequate fulfillment of all technical requirements put forward by the Contracting Authority;

b) in the case where it can be declared a winning bid:

the public procurements contract for the goods, which should be awarded in the tender, is transformed in the public procurements contract for the services; or

the public procurements contract for the services, which should be awarded in the tender, is transformed in the public procurements contract for the goods.

Article 42. The guarantee to secure the bid and the execution of the contract

- (1) In case of the procurements of goods or works, the supplier shall submit the bid together with the guarantee securing the bid.
- (2) The tender documents may specify the requirements of the Contracting Authority regarding the admissibility of the party issuing the guarantee to secure the bid or, if applicable, the party backing the guarantee; the form, terms and conditions of the guarantee to secure the bid. The Contracting Authority may not reject the bid on the grounds that the guarantee is issued by a foreign resident, where it is not contrary to the legislation, provided the bid guarantee and the guarantor comply with the requirements specified in the tender documents.
- (3) Prior to the submission of the bid, the supplier may request the Contracting Authority to confirm the admissibility of the guarantor issuing the bid guarantee or the party backing it. The Contracting Authority shall respond to such request promptly. Such confirmation may not prevent the Contracting Authority from the rejection of the bid guarantee, if the guarantor or the party backing the guarantee becomes insolvable or loses its credibility.
- (4) The Contracting Authority shall specify the requirements in the tender documents regarding the guarantor, format, amount and other basic requirements of the guarantee securing the bid as well as the requirements to the supplier submitting the bid guarantee for the following situations:
- a) the supplier withdraws or amends the bid after the deadline for the submission of the bids:
 - b) the winning bidder refuses to sign the procurement contract;
 - c) the bidder does not agree to correct mistakes in calculations;
- d) the winning bidder refuses to secure the execution of the contract upon acceptance of his bid or does not fulfill any of the prerequisites for signing of the procurement contract, which are specified in the tender documents.
- (5) The Contracting Authority may refrain from the request to the supplier to provide a bid guarantee in the case of the procurements of goods with the total estimated value below MDL 200,000 and works with the total estimated value below MDL 1,000,000. Where the Contracting Authority requests such guarantee, the supplier shall comply with the provisions of this Article.
- (6) The amount of the bid guarantee should not exceed 3% of the value of the submitted bid.
- (7) The Contracting Authority may not claim payment on the bid guarantee and it shall return the bid guarantee without delay upon occurrence of any of the below circumstances:
 - a) expiry of the bid guarantee validity term;

- b) signing of the procurement contract and provision of the guarantee securing its execution, where such guarantee is required by the tender documents;
 - c) suspension of the tender procedures without awards of the procurement contract;
- d) withdrawal of the bid prior to the bid submission deadline unless the tender documents prohibit expressly such withdrawal.
- (8) In the procurement of goods and works, the Contracting Authority shall request the bidder to provide the security for the contract execution at the time of its signing.
- (9) The Contracting Authority shall specify the requirements in the tender documents regarding the guarantor, format, amount and other basic terms and conditions of the required guarantee securing the execution of the contract.
- (10) Prior to the provision of the guarantee securing the execution of the contract, the supplier may request the Contracting Authority to confirm the admissibility of the proposed guarantor issuing the guarantee or the party backing it. The Contracting Authority shall respond to such request without delay.
- (11) In the procurements of goods to the estimated value below MDL 200,000 and works to the estimated value below MDL 1,000,000 the Contracting Authority may refrain from the request to the bidders to provide a guarantee securing the execution of the contract. If the Contracting Authority chooses to request such guarantee, it shall comply with the provisions of this Article.
- (12) The amount of the guarantee securing the execution of the contract may not exceed 15% of the nominal value of the procurement contract.

Article 43. Opening of the bids

- (1) Opening of the bids and their subsequent examination, evaluation and comparison shall fall within the powers and responsibility of the Contracting Authority.
- (2) The bids shall be opened on the day and at the time specified in the tender documents as the deadline for the submission of the bids or on the day and at the time specified as the new deadline in case of an extension, in the venue and according to the procedures established in the tender documents. The bidders or their representatives may participate in the opening of the bids.
- (3) The name and contact details for each bidder whose bid is opened and the bid price shall be notified to the parties present at the bid opening procedure and, upon their request, to those who were absent or had no representative at the opening procedure; and the respective information shall be entered in the report on the procurement procedure.

Article 44. Examination, evaluation and comparison of the bids

(1) The examination, evaluation and comparison of the bids shall be performed in the absence of the bidders or their representatives. To facilitate the examination, evaluation and comparison of the bids, the Contracting Authority may request the bidder to provide additional explanations in writing regarding the bid. No amendments, including price amendments, shall be allowed for the purpose to bring the bid in compliance with the requirements with which it did not comply initially. The Contracting Authority shall correct only arithmetic errors found in the bid during its examination, notifying the bidder accordingly without delay.

- (2) The Contracting Authority may consider the bid as complying if it contains immaterial deviations from the provisions of the tender documents, errors or omissions which can be corrected without affecting the essence of the bid. Any deviation of that kind shall be given quantitative assessment to the extent possible and taken in consideration during the evaluation and comparison of the bids.
 - (3) The Contracting Authority shall not accept the bid where:
 - a) the bidder does not comply with the qualification requirements;
 - b) the bidder does not agree to correct an arithmetic error;
- c) the bid does not comply with the requirements specified in the tender documentation:
 - d) the corruptive acts are shown to take place.
- (4) The Contracting Authority shall evaluate and compare the submitted bids to determine the winning bid, using the procedures and criteria described in the tender documents. It may not use any criteria not mentioned in the tender documents.
- (5) The winning bid shall be the bid found to be the most advantageous economically according to Article 45, with account of any preferential margin established according to Paragraph (6) hereof.
- (6) During the evaluation and comparison of the bids the Contracting Authority shall apply the preferential margin in favor of the bids proposing the domestic goods and the bids proposing the works performed by operators resident in Moldova, which preferential margin may not exceed 15% of the bid price found to be the best. The bids offering the products of the enterprises owned by the Association of the Blind, the Association of the Handicapped, the Association of the Deaf, the production facility of the National Psychiatric Hospital or the penitentiary system institutions and bids offering agricultural products and foodstuffs, which are ecological or in the period of transition to the ecological production processes, shall enjoy the preferential margin of 20% of the bid price found to be the best.
- (7) Where the bid prices are expressed in two or more currencies, the prices of all bids shall be recalculated in a single currency according to the exchange rate specified in the tender documents in order to facilitate the evaluation and comparison of the bids.
- (8) If the bidder does not fulfill the requirement of the Contracting Authority to reconfirm the qualification data for the conclusion of the contract, the bid shall be rejected and the second best bid shall be selected as winner from among the remaining valid bids. However, the Contracting Authority may reject all other bids.
- (9) The information regarding the examination, evaluation and comparison of the bids may not be disclosed to the bidders or other persons not involved formally in those procedures or in the determination of the winning bid.

Article 45. The bid most advantageous in the economic terms

The bid most advantageous in the economic terms shall be the bid identified as the winning bid based on the following criteria:

a) in the case of public procurement contracts for the goods: price, delivery terms, payment terms, profitability, quality, aesthetic and functional characteristics, technical characteristics, availability and costs of service maintenance, technical assistance;

- b) in the case of public procurement contracts for the works: the proposed quality, price per unit of bidder's products upon completion of the works, total price, the bidder's experience, etc. The significance of the price in the total bid evaluation shall be no less than 80%;
- c) in the case of public procurement contracts for the services: the proposed quality, price per unit of bidder's products, total price, the bidder's experience, etc. The significance of the price in the total bid evaluation shall be no less than 40%;

Article 46. A bid with an abnormally low price

- (1) A bid with an abnormally low price shall mean a bid to sell the goods, perform works or provide the services at a price which is significantly lower in comparison with the bids of other bidders, where:
- a) the Contracting Authority finds errors during the check and recalculation of price components, which are the reason for indication of an abnormally low bid price;
- b) the bidder is unable to demonstrate any special access or technology or more advantageous market conditions, which enable him to offer an abnormally low bid price;
 - c) the bidder does not comply with the technical requirements specified in the TOR.
- (2) The Contracting Authority must provide the supplier the possibility to justify the abnormally low bid price.

Article 47. Bid acceptance, awards and conclusion of the procurement contract

- (1) The Contracting Authority shall give the bidder a written notice on bid acceptance within 3 calendar days from the day of acceptance.
- (2) The tender documents may contain a requirement to the bidder submitting the winning bid to sign the procurement contract within 20 calendar days after the contract is forwarded to the winner for signing. The Agency may suspend the conclusion of the contract in the cases specified in Article 74.
- (3) The contract shall be considered concluded on the day it is signed by the parties and it shall become effective upon its registration in due course as provided for in this law. The time necessary for such registration should be indicated in the tender documents. If the contract is not registered within that time, the validity of the bid or bid guarantee. A guarantee might be requested in that case unless the Contracting Authority and the bidder agree otherwise in writing.
- (4) If, upon expiry of the term provided for in Paragraph (2), the bidder who has received the bid acceptance notice does not sign the procurement contract or present the requested security for the execution of the contract, the Contracting Authority may reject the bid and select another winning bid from among the remaining valid bids. However, the Contracting Authority may reject all other bids according to the provisions of Article 29 of this law.
- (5) The Contracting Authority shall notify the other bidders participating in the tender about the conclusion of the procurements contract within 10 calendar days upon its conclusion, indicating the name and contact data of the supplier to whom the contract was awarded and the contract price.

Section 3. The Closed Tender

Article 48. The conditions for holding a closed tender

- (1) The Contracting Authority may hold a closed tender where the goods, works and services are of complex nature or available to a large number of suppliers operating at the market.
- (2) The closed tender shall be held according to the rules similar to those for an open tender, subject to the application of pre-selection (short-listing) procedures preceded by the publication of a request for proposals (invitation to the participation in pre-selection).
 - (3) The invitation to the participation in the short-listing shall indicate:
 - a) the procedures and venue for the acquisition of pre-selection documents;
 - b) if applicable, the fee payable for the pre-selection documents;
 - c) the currency and procedures for paying the fee for the pre-selection documents;
 - d) the language(s) for the production of pre-selection documents;
 - e) venue and deadline for the submission of applications for pre-selection.

Article 49. Pre selection (short-listing) procedure

- (1) The Contracting Authority shall perform pre-selection (short-listing) of the candidates to identify qualified suppliers prior to the submission of the bids according to the provisions of Article 16.
- (2) In case of applying the above procedures the Contracting Authority shall offer a package of the pre-selection documents to each supplier applying for them based on the invitation to participate in the pre-selection and paying the requested fee for such documents. The fee may include only the costs of producing the documents and their delivery to the suppliers. Such documents shall be offered free of charge to the Association of the Blind, the Association of the Handicapped, the Association of the Deaf, the production facility of the National Psychiatric Hospital, the penitentiary system institutions and other disadvantaged parties.
 - (3) The pre-selection documents shall comprise:
- a) the instructions regarding the preparation and submission of the applications for preselection;
- b) summary description of the principal terms and conditions of the procurement contract which would be concluded based on the results of the procurement procedures;
- c) the detailed list of the documents to be presented by the supplier to confirm his qualifications;
- d) the information on the procedures, venue and deadline (exact day and time) for the submission of applications for pre-selection;
- e) any other requirements regarding the preparation and presentation of applications for the pre-selection and pre-selection procedures, which the Contracting Authority establishes in conformity with this law, other laws and regulations and the standardized documents;

- f) the information specified in Article 35 Paragraph (1) letters a), e) and h), and, if known, the information specified in letter j) of the above Article.
- (4) The Contracting Authority must respond to all inquiries of the suppliers regarding the obtained pre-selection documents no later than 10 calendar days prior to the deadline for the submission of applications for the pre-selection. The Contracting Authority must respond within a reasonable term so that the supplier has the possibility to submit his application on time. The response to each inquiry, which might be of interest for the other suppliers, should be distributed to all suppliers obtaining the pre-selection documents from the Contracting Authority, without indicating the source of the inquiry.
- (5) The pre-selection criteria shall be specified in the pre-selection documents. Only those criteria may be applied for the evaluation of the qualifications demonstrated by each supplier applying for pre-selection.
- (6) When the pre-selection results are registered, the Contracting Authority shall communicate them promptly to each supplier applying for the pre-selection and present the list of all short-listed (pre-selected) suppliers upon request of any public applicant. Only short-listed suppliers may participate in the subsequent procurement procedure.
- (7) The Contracting Authority might notify each supplier who was not pre-selected, upon the latter's request, about the grounds for such decision; however, the Contracting Authority shall have no obligation to substantiate its decisions.

Section 4. Other public procurement procedures

Article 50. The framework agreement

- (1) The framework agreement shall mean an agreement concluding between one or more Contracting Authorities on the one part and one or more suppliers on the other part; the subject matter of such agreement is to establish the terms and conditions for the contracts which would be awarded during a certain period, in particular prices and, if applicable, the estimated quantities.
- (2) Concluding a framework agreement, the Contracting Authorities shall observe at all stages the requirements provided for herein till the awards of the contracts based on the respective framework agreement. The parties to the framework agreement shall be selected via application of the awarding criteria as per Article 45.
- (3) The contracts based on the framework agreement shall be awarded in compliance with this law and the Regulations approved by the Government.

Article 51. The competitive dialogue

- (1) The competitive dialogue is an open tender procedure held in 2 stages, which should be applied in the case of extremely complex procurement contracts; any supplier may apply to participate and the Contracting Authority conducts a dialogue with the candidates admitted to such tender with the aim to produce one or more alternative solutions satisfying the requirements; the selected candidates are invited to submit their bids based on the results of the dialogue.
- (2) A public procurement contract is considered to be "particularly complex" where the Contracting Authority is not able to define due to objective reasons:
 - a) the technical means which could satisfy its needs and objectives; and/or

- b) the legal and/or financial nature of the project.
- (3) In the first stage of the procedure, the tender documents should request the suppliers to submit bids without price quotations and to provide the information regarding the technical characteristics, quality and other specifics of the goods, works and services, the contract terms and conditions, the supplier's professional and technical skills and qualifications, if necessary.
- (4) At this stage of the procedure the Contracting Authority may start negotiations with any supplier whose bid is not rejected.
- (5) In the second stage of the procedure, the suppliers participating in the first stage whose bids are not rejected should submit their final bids, quoting prices. The Contracting Authority may exclude or amend any initial provision of the tender documents or add new characteristics or criteria according to this law. The information about such exclusion, amendment or modification to the tender documents shall be communicated to the suppliers in the invitation (RFP) to present their final bids. The suppliers not willing to submit final bids may withdraw from the tender procedure at this stage without losing the right to withdraw their bid guarantees. The final bids shall be evaluated and compared to determine the winning bid.

Article 52. The negotiation procedures

- (1) The Contracting Authority may award public procurement contracts using the negotiation procedure, upon publication of the invitation to participation, in the following cases:
- a) in the case incorrect or unacceptable bids are submitted in the open/closed tender or a competitive dialogue, provided the initial terms and conditions of the contract are not modified substantially. The Contracting Authority may choose not to publish an invitation to participation where the negotiation process includes all bidders or only the bidders which comply with the quality criteria required for the selection and which have submitted bids complying with the formal requirements of the contract awarding procedure at an earlier stage in the open/closed tender or a competitive dialogue;
- b) in the exceptional cases, which involve the goods, works or services whose nature or the involved risks do not permit to estimate the total price in advance;
- c) in the sphere of the services, including intellectual services, such as the development of the works design to the extent the contract specifications cannot be established with sufficient exactness due to the nature of the services to be provided in order to make possible the contract awards via selection of the most advantageous bid according to the regulations for the open/closed tender procedure;
- d) in the case of the public procurement contracts for the works where such works are performed solely for the purposes of R&D or trials rather than to generate profits or cover the R&D costs.
- (2) In the cases provided for in Paragraph (1) the Contracting Authority shall negotiate with the bidders based on the bids submitted by them in order to adapt them to the requirements specified in the invitation to participation, TOR and the eventual supplementary documents and to identify the most advantageous bid.

Article 53. Procurements from a single source

- (1) In the case of the public procurement contracts for works, goods and services, the Contracting Authority may procure from a single source where:
- a) no adequate bids or candidates are identified during the open tender or negotiations unless the initial contract terms and conditions are amended substantially;
- b) to the extent strictly necessary where the terms for an open tender or negotiations with the RFP publication cannot be observed for reasons of the utmost urgency as result of the events, which could not be foreseen reasonably by the relevant Contracting Authority. The situations referred to in order to justify the utmost urgency may in no case be imputable to the Contracting Authorities;
- c) for technical or creative reasons, for reasons connected with the protection of exclusivity rights or any other objective reasons the required goods, works and services are available only from a single supplier, or a single supplier holds the priority rights to them and there exists no alternative, or the supplier is established by the law.
- (2) In the case of the public procurement contracts for goods, the Contracting Authority may procure from a single source where:
- a) the respective goods are produced solely for the purposes of the R&D or trials. This provision shall not apply to large-scale industrial production performed to determine the product's commercial viability or to amortize the R&D costs;
- b) the public procurements contract involves supplementary deliveries performed by the initial supplier with the aim either to replace partially the goods or installations currently in use, or to extend the existent goods or installations, if the change of a supplier would require the Contracting Authority to acquire technical material with different characteristics, resulting in the incompatibility or disproportionate technical problems in operation and maintenance; as a general rule, the duration of such contracts or renewed contracts may not exceed 3 years;
- c) the goods to be procured are subject to quotas and acquired at the raw materials exchange;
- d) the public procurements contract involves the acquisition of the goods on particularly advantageous terms and conditions either from a supplier who winds up his business, or from the curators or liquidators of a bankrupt business, or in any other process of similar nature in accordance with the national legislation or regulations.
- (3) In the case of the public procurement contracts for services, the Contracting Authority may procure from a single source where the respective contract results from competition and must be awarded according to the applicable rules to the winner or one of the winners in such competition. In the latter case all winners in the competition should be invited to participate in the negotiations.
- (4) In the case of the public procurements contracts for works and services, the Contracting Authority may procure from a single source:
- a) supplementary works or services which are not covered by the initial cost estimate or the initial contract and which have become necessary as result of an unexpected situation to make possible the provision of the above works or services covered thereby, provided the contract is awarded to the supplier executing the respective works or services, where:

the respective supplementary works or services cannot be segregated for technical or economic reasons from the initial contract without creating a major inconvenience for the Contracting Authority; or

the respective works or services, notwithstanding the possibility of their segregation from the initial contract, are absolutely necessary to complete the contract. The aggregate value of the contracts awarded for supplementary works or services may not exceed 30% of the total value of the initial contract;

- b) new works or services, which consist in the repetition of similar works or services awarded by the same Contracting Authority to the supplier under the initial contract, provided the respective works or services are in conformity with the initial project and form part of the subject of the initial contract awarded in an open or closed tender;
- c) if during the procurement procedure the Contracting Authority receives a singe bid in response to the RFP, and it is not feasible to hold a new tender.
- (5) The possibility of using the procedure mentioned in Paragraph (2) Letter b) and Paragraph (4) letters a) or b) shall be announced at the time of launching the RFP for the first project, and the Contracting Authority shall take into account the total estimated value of continuing the works or services. In the above cases, the procedure described in Paragraphs (1) (4) may be used only within 3 years upon conclusion of the initial contract.
- (6) The procedures for the implementation of procurements from a single source shall be established in the Regulations approved by the Government.

Article 54. The request for price quotations

- (1) The Contracting Authority may award contracts via requests for price quotations for the procurements of goods, works and services, which should comply with pre-defined specifications, provided the estimated value of the procurements does not exceed MDL 200,000 for goods and services and MDL 1,000,000 for works.
- (2) The Contracting Authority may set other requirements in addition to the price, which would be considered during the assessment of price quotations. In such cases the request for price quotations shall indicate each such requirement and its relative significance in the ultimate assessment.
- (3) Each supplier may submit a single price quotation without the right to change it subsequently. The Contracting Authority may not negotiate any such quotations with the bidder.
- (4) The winning quotation shall be the quotation, which satisfies all requirements at the lowest price.
- (5) The Contracting Authority shall publish an announcement of intent in the Public Procurement Bulletin and on the public procurement web page Prior to the procurements of goods and services with the estimated value in excess of MDL 100,000 and in the procurements of works with the estimated value in excess of MDL 500,000.
- (6) The procedures for the implementation of procurements via request for price quotations shall be established in the Regulations approved by the Government.

Article 55. The dynamic procurements system

- (1) The dynamic procurements system shall mean a totally electronic procurements process to procure the current consumption goods generally available at the market, whose characteristics satisfy the requirements of the Contracting Authority. The dynamic system is limited in time and open throughout the process to any supplier, which satisfies the selection criteria and submits a preliminary bid in line with the requested requirements.
- (2) To implement a dynamic procurements system, the Contracting Authorities shall respect the requirements regarding the open tender at all stages thereof till the award of the contracts within the respective system. All bidders should be invited and admitted in the system who satisfy the selection criteria and have submitted a preliminary bid complying with the TOR and the eventual supplementary documents. Preliminary bids may be improved at any moment, provided they remain in compliance with the TOR.
 - (3) To apply the dynamic procurements system, the Contracting Authorities shall:
- a) publish a RFP specifying that the contract would be awarded within a dynamic procurements system;
- b) specify in the TOR, among other things, the nature of the scheduled procurements which form subject of the respective system and other necessary information on the procurement system, the electronic equipment used as well as the connection arrangements and technical specifications;
- c) offer free, direct and total access via electronic communication channels to the TOR and all supplementary documents for the period from publication of the RFP to the expiry of the system's application term and the RFP should specify the Internet address where the respective documents can be accessed.
- (4) The Contracting Authorities may apply the dynamic procurements system to award public procurement contracts on terms and conditions provided for by this law and according to the procedures established in the Regulations approved by the Government.

Article 56. An electronic auction

- (1) An electronic auction shall mean a repeating process which involves the use of electronic equipment to present in the descending order new prices and/or new values of certain bid elements, which are used upon the first complete evaluation of the bids, permitting their classification with automated evaluation methods. Certain contracts for services and works, whose subject matter is intellectual activities, such as work designs, may not form the subject matter of the electronic auction.
- (2) The Contracting Authorities may use electronic auctions to award public procurement contracts on terms and conditions provided for by this law and according to the procedures established in the Regulations approved by the Government.
- (3) The Contracting Authorities holding an electronic auction shall mention that fact in the invitation for participation and in the standardized documents.
- (4) Prior to the launch of an electronic auction, the Contracting Authoritymust perform an initial integrated assessment of the bids in conformity with the specified criteria for the contract awards.
- (5) The Contracting Authority must invite all bidders which have submitted complying bids to submit new price quotations and/or, as the case may be, new values for the bid components. The invitation is communicated electronically to all such bidders simultaneously.

- (6) The invitation must indicate the starting day and time of the electronic auction as well as any information necessary to perform individual connection to the electronic equipment used in it.
- (7) The Contracting Authority may not start the electronic auction earlier that in 2 woirking days from the day on which the invitations are communicated.
 - (8) The electronic auction is held in several successive rounds.
- (9) During each round of the electronic auction the Contracting Authority must communicate simultaneously to all bidders at least the information required by them to determine at any moment their respective positions in the rating.
- (10) The electronic auction comes to an end in any of the following situations or combination thereof:
- a) At the exact moment in time specified in advance and communicated to the bidders in the invitation for participation in the auction;
- b) After a certain number of the auction rounds held according to the exact schedule specified in advance and communicated to the bidders in the invitation for participation in the auction;
- c) When no more new price quotations and/or values are submitted satisfying the requirements regarding the minimum auction step (difference in bid prices); in that case the invitation to participate in the auction must specify the deadline for the completion of the electronic auction after the submission of the last bid.
- (11) The Contracting Authority must award the public procurements contract on the terms of Article 65 based on the results achieved on completion of the electronic auction.

Article 57. Procurements in the case of the social housing construction schemes

- (1) A special contract awards procedure may be used in the case of the public procurement contracts connected with the design and construction of social housing ensembles where the scope, complexity and the estimated duration of the works require that planning be based from the very beginning on very close collaboration in the workgroup comprised of the persons representing the Contracting Authorities, experts and contractors performing the works and responsible for the execution of the works; such procedure should ensure the selection of the contractor to perform the works, who is best able to integrate in the workgroup.
- (2) The Contracting Authorities must include the most detailed description of the works in the RFP so that interested contractors could assess realistically the project to be implemented and the qualitative and organizational selection criteria as well as economic, social, legal, financial, technical and personal requirements which all bidders should satisfy.

Article 58. Procurements via the Universal Commodity Exchange

The procurements of certain categories of strategic importance goods with the exact pre-determined specifications may be performed via Universal Commodity Exchange according to the Regulations approved by the Government.

Article 59. Cancellation of the results of procurement procedures

(1) The Contracting Authority may cancel - on its own initiative or upon the Agency's request based on the results of performed checks - the procedures to award the public procurements contract, provided such decision is made prior to the day of notifying the results

of applying the public procurements procedure and in any case prior to the conclusion of the contract where:

- a) it was impossible to ensure s satisfactory competition level, i.e. the number of bidders is lower than the minimum required number of bidders set by the law for each procedure;
- b) none of the bidders satisfies the qualification requirements provided for in the documentation on the production and submission of the bids;
- c) in the case of the public procurements of works, the bid price is more than 20% higher than the estimated value of the works calculated by the Contracting Authority according to the established procedures;
 - d) only non-complying bids were submitted, i.e. the bids:

submitted after the deadline for the submission of bids;

produced and presented not in compliance with the requirements of the documentation regarding the production and submission of bids;

quoting prices in the financial proposal, which are evidently not the result of free competition and which cannot be reasonably justified;

containing such proposals regarding the contract terms and conditions, which are obviously disadvantageous for the Contracting Authority;

with such price quotations included in the financial proposal, where every quoted price exceeds the amount allocated for the implementation of the respective public procurements contract;

- e) exceptional circumstances affect the procedure of awarding the public procurements contract or make the conclusion of such contract impossible;
 - f) a corruptive act is shown and confirmed by the definitive court ruling.
- (2) The procurement procedures may be declared null and void solely by the Agency after the communication of the results of applying the public procurements procedure and after the conclusion of the contract in the cases provided for in Paragraph (1).
- (3) The decision to cancel the results of the public procurements procedure shall not create any liability on the part of the Contracting Authority or the Agency to the participants in the public procurement procedure, excepting the return of the guarantee securing the bid and the execution of the contract.
- (4) The Contracting Authority must notify all participants in the public procurements procedure in writing within 2 days after the cancellation about the termination of the obligations created for the both parties on the force of submitting the bid as well as the grounds for the cancellation.

CHAPTER VII

THE SPECIFICS OF THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENTS FOR ADVISORY SERVICES

Article 60. The attraction of bids for advisory services

- (1) In the case of any doubts as to whether the subject matter of the procurements should be categorized as goods or as services, the procurements shall be deemed to be the procurements of goods.
- (2) The Contracting Authority shall attract the bids for services or applications for preselection via announcement in the Public Procurements Bulletin and in the international circulation mass media. The announcements shall specify the Contracting Authority's name and address, provide a brief description of the requested services, the procedures for obtaining of the RFP documents for the services or pre-selection documents and the fee payable for such documents, if applicable.
 - (3) The Contracting Authority shall not apply the provisions of Paragraph (2) where:
- a) the requested services are available to a limited number of suppliers, provided a RFP is given to all such suppliers;
- b) the costs of examination and evaluation of a large number of bids are disproportionably high as compared to the price of the requested services, provided the bids are attracted from a sufficient number of suppliers to ensure efficient competition;
- c) a direct request is the sole method to ensure confidentiality or is required by the national interests, upon conditions provided for in Letter b).
 - (4) Skilled consultants may be invited for the procurement of advisory services.
- (5) The Contracting Authority shall offer the suppliers RFP documents for the services or pre-selection documents either according to the procedure and requirements specified in the announcement or directly to the suppliers in the cases covered by Paragraph (3). The fee, which the Contracting Authority may collect for the RFP or pre-selection documents, may include only the costs of their production and delivery to the suppliers. If pre-selection procedures are initiated, the Contracting Authority shall deliver the RFP to each pre-selected (short-listed) supplier, who has paid the application fee.

Article 61. The RFP for the advisory services

The RFP structure and contents in the case of advisory services shall be established in the standardized documents approved by the Government.

Article 62. The evaluation criteria for the bids for advisory services

The Contracting Authority shall approve the evaluation criteria in respect of the bids for advisory services as well as the relative significance of each criterion and the procedures for its application. Such criteria shall be communicated to the suppliers in the RFP and they shall refer to:

a) the qualification data, experience, reputation, reliability, professional and managerial skills of the supplier in general and specifically of his staff involved in the provision of the services;

- b) bid efficiency;
- c) bid price, including the auxiliary or related expense;
- d) the national defense and security needs.

Article 63. The procedure for the selection of the advisory service bids

- (1) If the Contracting Authority decides to use the procedure of selecting the bids for advisory services without negotiations, it shall establish certain requirements regarding the quality and technical characteristics of the bids according to the criteria other than price specified in the RFP, and evaluate each bid for compliance with those criteria, using the procedure described in the RFP. The winning bid shall be the bid with the optimum combined value (the highest number of awarded points) according to the criteria mentioned in Article 62.
- (2) Where it is decided to apply the advisory services selection procedure via consecutive negotiations with the bidders, the Contracting Authority shall:
 - a) establish the level of requirements according to Paragraph (1);
- b) invite the bidder with the highest number of awarded points to the negotiations regarding the bid price according to Paragraph (1);
- c) notify the bidder about the termination of negotiations, should it be found impossible to achieve an acceptable price;
- d) invite the bidder with the second highest number of awarded points to the negotiations; if the contract is not concluded with that bidder either, the remaining bidders shall be invited to the negotiations in the descending order of the points awarded to them till the contract is concluded or till all bids are rejected.

Article 64. Confidentiality

- (1) The Contracting Authority shall ensure the confidentiality of the bid examination.
- (2) The negotiations held shall be confidential. None of the parties participating in the negotiations may disclose any information regarding the issues discussed during the negotiations to a third party without consent of the counterparty.

CHAPTER VIII

THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENT CONTRACT. PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE REPORT

Article 65. The principles of awarding a public procurements contract

The awards of the public procurement contract shall be based on the following principles:

- a) observance of the law, order, public morale and professional ethics during the assessment and award of the contract;
 - b) selection of the bid most advantageous in technical and economic terms;
- c) ensuring the environment protection and support of social programs in the process of executing the contract.

Article 66. Preferences in the awards of public procurement contracts

For the purposes of awarding public procurement contracts preference shall be given to the suppliers who have a direct or indirect objective to encourage professional training on the job, creation of jobs for the unemployed, young people and persons with integration problems, reduction of the unemployment rates, professional training for the unemployed and the young people, environment protection, improvement of labor conditions and labor safety, rural development and professional training in agriculture, protection and support of small and medium-sized enterprises (SME businesses), including during the contract execution period and their involvement as sub-contractors. Such available preferences must be specified in the invitation for participation (RFP).

Article 67. The public procurements contract

- (1) The public procurements contract must be concluded according to the procurement procedures provided for in this law, for the total amount allocated for the procurements for the year in line with the procurements plan.
- (2) During the procurement procedures via tender the winner's notification and the conclusion of the procurement contract shall be performed according to Article 47.
- (3) In the case of using any other procurement method, the bidders shall be informed about the terms and conditions of concluding the procurements contract at the time of giving them a request for their proposals.
- (4) It shall not be allowed to introduce any amendments in the details of the winning bid, to set new requirements to the winning bidder or to involve any bidder other than the one who has submitted the bid most advantageous in economic terms at the time of concluding the procurement contract.
- (5) The term(s) for the execution of the contract established reasonably according to the Contracting Authority's needs shall be determined with account of the complexity of the scheduled procurements, the anticipated scope of sub-contracts and the time required realistically to produce, stock and transport the goods from the supplier's facilities or to provide the services.
- (6) The terms and conditions for the execution of the contract shall not include any clauses directly or indirectly discriminatory in their nature.
- (7) Upon conclusion, the procurement contract shall be submitted to the Agency for examination and registration within 5 days, accompanied with the documents confirming the implementation of the respective procurements procedure.
- (8) The public procurements contract registered with the Agency shall be registered subsequently with one of the State Treasury offices. The contracts not registered in due course shall have no legal effect.

Article 68. Sub-contracts

In the terms of reference the Contracting Authority may request the bidder to indicate in his bid the parts of the contract scope which he intends to sub-contract to a third party and the proposed sub-contractors, including SME businesses and other cubcontractors, if applicable. Such details shall not result in any exemptions from the principal bidder's responsibility.

Article 69. The ban on the procurements fragmentation or increase

- (1) Where the procurements are not fragmented initially, the Contracting Authority may not fragment the procurement by concluding separate contracts enabling it to apply a procedure different from the procurements procedure, which must be used in conformity with this law. The exception is the seasonal procurements of goods and services, which involve the conclusion of separate contracts for different periods of time. In the case of the procurements of goods, works and services with the implementation period above one year, the contract may be concluded for the total procurements, although its implementation should be ensured within the limits of annual allocations scheduled for the purpose and specified annually in the contract.
- (2) The Contracting Authority may not increase the amount of the goods, works and services specified in the concluded contracts to avoid a new procurement, excepting the cases provided for in this law.
- (3) It shall not be allowed to amend any part of the concluded contract or to introduce new terms and conditions, where such actions result in deviations from the terms and conditions of the bid, which are the reason for its selection, or to increase the contract value.
- (4) In the case of the public procurement contracts providing for the continuous execution and concluded for a long term exceeding 1 year, it shall be allowed to adjust the value of the public procurement contract from time to time according to the procedure established by the Government in order to take into account the changes in prices for the cost items of the goods, works or services forming the subject matter of the contract.
- (5) The supplier must observe unconditionally the provisions of the concluded contract, complying with the quality requirements and the established price. A breach or improper fulfillment of the contractual obligations shall result in the supplier's liability in conformity with the legislation and the provisions of the contract.
- (6) The competent controlling authorities shall apply financial sanctions prescribed by the law to any supplier, irrespective of the latter's legal status, who amends unilaterally the terms and conditions of the procurements contract, or performs works, or provides the services not included in the contract, or increases the contract prices without adequate substantiation.

Article 70. The report on the procurements procedure

- (1) The report on the procurements procedure shall be prepared by the Contracting Authority and submitted to the Agency within 5 days after the day of concluding the contract. The report shall include:
- a) summary description of the goods, works and services for which the Contracting Authority has requested proposals;
- b) the names and contacts of the bidders as well as the name and contacts of the supplier which is awarded the procurements contract and the contract price;
 - c) the bidders' qualifications;
- d) the bid price or the basis for its calculation, a summary description of the other essential terms and conditions of each bid and the procurements contract;

- e) summary conclusions regarding the evaluation and comparison of the bids with account of using the preferential margin;
- f) the respective decision with valid arguments substantiating the rejection of all bids, if applicable;
- g) the grounds for choosing the respective procurement method in the case of using a procurements procedure different from an open tender;
- h) the decision and its grounds in the case of using a procurements procedure different from an open tender, where such procedure fails to achieve the conclusion of the procurements contract;
- i) the reasons for the rejection in the case of bid rejection according to the provisions of Article 30;
- j) the grounds for choosing the selection procedure in the case of the procurement of services;
- k) explanation of the reasons for the application of the respective method in the case of using the procurement procedures requesting direct submission of bids for the services;
- l) explanation of the reasons for the restrictions in the case of the procurement procedures where the Contracting Authority restricts the participation of suppliers;
- m) summary of the received inquiries and requests to provide explanations regarding the pre-selection documents or tender documents, the respective responses and summary explanations for each amendment introduced in the above documents.
- (2) The information specified in Paragraph (1) Letters a) and b) shall be provided upon request of any party upon acceptance of the bid or completion of the procurements procedure which did not result in the conclusion of a procurements contract.
- (3) The information specified in Paragraph (1) Letters c) to h) and m) shall be provided on the request of the suppliers who have submitted their bids or applications for pre-selection and upon acceptance of the bid or completion of the procurement procedure which did not result in the conclusion of a procurements contract. Excepting the cases where the request comes from the court, the Contracting Authority shall not disclose the information specified in Paragraph (1) Letters c) to e) and m), if the disclosure of such information is contrary to the law and state interests, or if it might prejudice the lawful commercial interests of the parties or be harmful for fair competition.

CHAPTER IX

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES AND LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY

Section 1. Settlement of disputes

Article 71. The right of appeal

(1) Any supplier who believes that the Contracting Authority has injured the supplier's lawful rights during the procurements procedure because of the decision made or the procurements procedure applied with infringements of the law and resulting in the actual o threatening damage for the supplier, may challenge in due course provided for in this law the relevant decision made or the procedure applied by the Contracting Authority.

- (2) The subject of the appeal may not be:
- a) the choice of the procedure for the selection of the bids for advisory services;
- b) the restrictions on the participation in the procurements procedure provided for in Article 15 Paragraph (1);
 - c) the decision to reject all bids;
- d) the lack of a reference to this law or other laws and regulations regarding the procurements procedure, or the lack of a note regarding the right of appeal.
- (3) Appeals regarding the RFP, invitations to tender and tender documents may be submitted prior to the opening of the bid envelopes by the Contracting Authority.

Article 72. Submission and examination of appeals

- (1) The Supplier may submit a substantiated claim to the Agency regarding the Contracting Authority's actions, decisions or applied procedures within 10 calendar days after it becomes aware of the circumstances which are the grounds for the appeal.
- (2) The Agency shall not examine claims submitted upon expiry of the term provided for in Paragraph (1) hereof.
 - (3) The claim must be submitted in writing and it must specify:
- a) the supplier's complete name and the name and first name of its representative, the document (in copy) confirming the representative's authority, the registered office and contact details;
 - b) the Contracting Authority's name, registered office and contact details;
- c) the essence of the claim and its grounds with indication of the claimant's lawful rights and interests injured during the procurement procedures;
 - d) the list of the documents attached to the claim.
 - (4) Based on the examination of the claim, the Agency may:
 - a) initiate, if applicable, the procedure for settlement of the dispute in negotiation;
 - b) accept the claim in its integrity or in part;
 - c) reject the claim in its integrity or in part;
 - d) request re-evaluation of the bids;
 - e) take other measures to settle the dispute according to the law.
- (5) The dispute underlying the claim may be settled amicably, on the suggestion of the Agency and/or the supplier participating in the procurement procedures, with the invitation of all suppliers involved in the procedure of challenge. The amicable settlement of the dispute shall be formalized and confirmed via drawing of the respective protocol, which is signed by all participants.
- (6) Where the dispute is not settled amicably within 10 calendar days after registration of the claim according to the provisions of Paragraph (5) hereof, within 20 calendar days after submission of the claim the Agency shall issue a substantiated decision specifying the measures which must be taken to redress the situation in the case the claim is found valid in its integrity or in part.

(7) The Contracting Authority shall be obliged to repair the damage incurred to the supplier due to the illegal actions confirmed by the definitive decision of the competent courts, illegal decisions or application of illegal procedures; however, the liability shall not include lost profits or missed opportunities to obtain benefits.

Article 73. Claim examination procedures

- (1) The Agency shall notify the Contracting Authority and all suppliers participating in the procurements procedure about the essence of the claim promptly upon its receipt.
- (2) The Agency may request from the Contracting Authority to submit within 5 working days all documents necessary for the examination of the respective claim and, if necessary, explanations in writing with comments to the submitted claim.
- (3) The supplier or the public authority whose interests are or might be injured by the claim may participate in the procedure. The supplier which has not participated in the claim examination procedure may not submit claims regarding similar issues at a later stage.
- (4) The Agency shall leave the claim without examination and issue the respective decision in its respect where:
 - a) the claim is submitted upon expiry of the established term;
- b) the claim does not comply with the requirements specified in Article 72 Paragraph (3).
- (5) Where the claim does not comply with the requirements of Article 72 Paragraph (3), the Agency shall return the claim to the claimant and give him 2 working days to rectify the non-compliances. If the identified non-compliances are not rectified within the established term, the Agency shall leave the claim without examination and the claimant shall lose the right to submit a new claim.
- (6) The Agency shall examine the claim and issue a decision regarding it within 20 working days after its submission, based on the submitted documents or their examination in an open meeting, with invitations given in writing to and the presence of at least the Agency's representative, the claimant, the Contracting Authority and, if applicable, the winning bidder. During the examination of the claim the Agency may invite experts in the relevant area to give their opinions in writing and/or orally at the meeting convened to examine the claim.
- (7) Should any or the both parties to the dispute fail to appear at the announced meeting, the Agency may examine the claim and issue the respective decision based on the submitted documents.
- (8) The Agency's decision shall be communicated within 3 working days after it is made to the claimant supplier and to any other supplier or public authority participating in the claim examination procedure. The claim and the decision shall be notified immediately to all the involved parties on condition of non-disclosure if such disclosure is contrary to the legislation or public interests or if it might injure the lawful commercial interests of the parties or fair competition.
- (9) The examination of the claim shall terminate with the production of the respective protocol, where:
 - a) the claim is left without examination in the cases provided for in Paragraph (4);
 - b) the claim is withdrawn by the claimant;

- c) the Contracting Authority accepts the claim as substantiated;
- d) the Agency decides to accept or reject the claim;
- e) the dispute underlying the claim is settled amicably as per Paragraph (5) Article 72.
- (10) If the Agency fails to issue a decision within the established term or if the supplier is not satisfied with the decision, the latter may appeal to the competent administrative court, and the Agency's competence to settle the dispute shall be terminated thereupon.

Article 74. Suspension of the procurements procedure

- (1) Upon receipt of the claim within the established term the Agency may order, acting upon on the request of the claimant supplier or on its own initiative, to suspend the conclusion/execution of the public procurements contract, if such claim is substantial and contains statements which are shown to confirm that:
 - a) the supplier would suffer damage without such suspension;
 - b) there exists a probability to satisfy the claim;
- c) the suspension would cause no damage to the parties involved in the procurements procedure.
- (2) The Agency shall order the suspension as per Paragraph (1) till the examination of the claim is terminated for any of the reasons specified in Article 73 Paragraph (9). Upon expiry of the suspension term specified herein the Contracting Authority must conclude the public procurements contract according to the requirements specified in Article 47.
- (3) The suspension shall not apply where the Agency considers that urgent public interests, such as: national defense and security, operation of public institutions, provision of public services, require the continuation of the procurements.

Section 2. Responsibility for the infringement of the public procurement law *Article 75. The forms of responsibility*

The infringements of the public procurements legislation may result in the disciplinary (including the financial), civil, administrative and penal responsibility in conformity with the law.

CHAPTER X

CONCLUDING AND TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

Article 76/ Coming into effect. Terminations. The Government's obligations

- (1) This law shall come into effect upon expiry of 3 months after its publication.
- (2) As soon as this law comes into effect the Law on the procurement of goods, works and services for the state needs no. 1166-XIII of April 30, 1997 shall cease to be effective.
 - (3) The Government shall within 6 months after the publication of this law:

Submit suggestions to the Parliament regarding the actions needed to bring the other legislation in compliance with this law;

Bring its regulations in compliance with this law;

Ensure the development and approval of the regulations provided for in this law.

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE PARLIAMENT

Marian LUPU

Chisinau, April 13 2007

No. 96-XVI.

The Laws of the Republic of Moldova 96/13.04.2007 Law on public procurements //Monitorul Oficial 107-111/470, 27.07.2007